
Town of Greenwich 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

January 2, 2014 
 

Page 1 of 6 

The Town of Greenwich Zoning Board of Appeals held a meeting at the Town Office Building, 2 
Academy Street, Greenwich, New York on Thursday, January 2, 2014 at 7:03 pm. 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  

John Farndell   ZBA Chairman 
Gregory Smith   ZBA Member 
Dawn Sharts     ZBA Member 
Tammara Van Ryn     ZBA Member  

 
MEMBERS ABSENT: 

Ralph Vecchio   ZBA Member 
   Roland Mann    ZBA Member   (Alternate) 
 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: ZBA Clerk Amanda Willetts and Andrew Allison. 
 
 
ZBA Clerk Amanda Willetts called roll. 
 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
The Board reviewed the monthly budget for the month of November and December 2013 
submitted by Budget Officer Kellie Blake. 
 
 
MINUTES: 
 
ZBA Chairman John Farndell asked the Board if they had reviewed the minutes from the 
November 7, 2013 meeting. ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn stated that she did not get a 
chance review the minutes. The remaining members stated they did and had no changes. 
The following decision was made. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 01-2014 
App. of Minutes 11/07/2013   

 
Motion by ZBA Member Dawn Sharts, 
Seconded by ZBA Member Gregory Smith, 
 
and passed unanimously by said Board, 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the November 7, 2013 meeting be approved and accepted 
as submitted. 
 



Town of Greenwich 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

January 2, 2014 
 

Page 2 of 6 

RECORD OF VOTE: 
  Chairman John Farndell   AYE 
  Member Gregory Smith   AYE 

   Member Ralph Vecchio   ABSENT 
   Member Dawn Sharts   AYE 
   Member Tammara Van Ryn   AYE 
   Member Roland Mann (Alternate)  ABSENT 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

Area Variance #2013-04 – Submitted by Monica Driver represented by Andrew 
Allison of AJA Architecture concerning property located at 5131 County Route 113, 
Greenwich. The rear of the property borders the Hudson River. Applicant is seeking a 26 ½ ft 
area variance in order to allow for the construction of a covered porch along the rear portion 
of her home. Parcel is located in a Residential District. Parcel ID # 219.-1-19.12. 

ZBA Chairman John Farndell opened the public hearing at 7:05 pm at which time he 
asked if any member of the public would like to speak. There was no response. John then 
asked Mr. Allison to review the application with the Board. Mr. Allison reviewed the previously 
submitted plans with the Board and submitted a photo of the home where the previous porch 
was removed. ZBA Chairman John Farndell stated that he had been in the home many years 
ago and at that time the porch was in poor condition. ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn asked 
Mr. Allison what the setback was from the proposed porch to the river. Mr. Allison stated that 
it is 73 ft from the river to the proposed deck. He continued that the previous porch was 71 ft 
from the river therefore the proposed deck is smaller. ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn said  
the plans state that only a portion of the deck will be covered. Mr. Allison stated that was 
correct. ZBA Chairman John Farndell took pictures on his sight visit. They were still on his 
camera therefore he shared his camera with the Board for review. ZBA Clerk Amanda 
Willetts stated that the referral was received back from the Washington County Planning 
Board and they ‘Found it to be a matter of essentially Local Concern; therefore, the referring 
body should proceed to take final action on the matter.’ Amanda continued that a letter was 
also received from an adjoining land owner. ZBA Chairman John Farndell read the letter to 
the Board. 

 
To Whom It May Concern re Area Variance #2013-04; 
 
Re request for a variance from Monica and Robert Driver to construct a covered porch 
on the rear of their home as part of their restoration. The property borders ours and is 
to our immediate North. We share a driveway.  
 
The home when owned by our previous neighbors, Liz and Kelly Humphrey had a 
large porch on the rear of the house which was removed when the Drivers bought the 
property in anticipation of repairs. 
 
We are very pleased with the improvements the Drivers intend for their property and 



Town of Greenwich 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

January 2, 2014 
 

Page 3 of 6 

happy for them to have a porch again. Their improvements will only make their 
property and by extension, our neighborhood a more pleasant place to live. 

 
 Sincerely, 
 Susanna and David Crump 

5129 Route 113 
Next door neighbors. 

 
ZBA Chairman John Farndell closed the public hearing at 7:15 pm and stated that no 

members of the public, other than Mr. Allison, were present. ZBA Member Gregory Smith 
stated that this is a Type 2 action but asked if the Board will have to review SEQRA since the 
requirement of 100 ft from the Hudson River is not being met. ZBA Chairman John Farndell 
stated that the Board did not have to review SEQRA. ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn stated 
that she would like to abstain from voting due to her not fully understanding SEQRA. ZBA 
Chairman John Farndell stated that he would give ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn a copy of 
the paperwork from the SEQRA training classes for her to review. ZBA Member Gregory 
Smith then stated that the application is a type 2 action meaning that no SEQRA review is 
required.   
 

RESOLUTION NO. 02-2014 
                                                                                  Type 2 Action, SEQRA - AV# 2013-04 

 
Motion by ZBA Member Gregory Smith,  
Seconded by ZBA Member Dawn Sharts, 
 
and passed unanimously by said Board,  
 
RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 617.5 of the New York State Environmental 
Conservation Law the proposed area variance application AV #2013-04 is a type two action 
and therefore requires no further State Environmental Quality Act Review.    
 

RECORD OF VOTE: 
  Chairman John Farndell   AYE 
  Member Gregory Smith   AYE 

   Member Ralph Vecchio   ABSENT 
   Member Dawn Sharts   AYE 
   Member Tammara Van Ryn   ABSTAIN 
   Member Roland Mann (Alternate)  ABSENT 
 
The Board reviewed the Area Variance worksheet: 
 

I) Does Variance Change Character of Neighborhood? No. 
 
II) Are There Available Alternatives? Yes. The applicant could place a patio rather than       
    construct a deck. 



Town of Greenwich 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

January 2, 2014 
 

Page 4 of 6 

III) Will the Variance Have Physical and/or Environmental Impacts? 
A. Traffic increase: No. 
B. Noise: No. 
C. Air quality: No. 
D. Scenic: No. 
E. Affect on Emergency Response: No. 
F. Other: None. 
 

IV) Was Problem Self Created? Yes. 
 
V) Date Parcel Acquired: 05/21/2010. 
 
VI) Was project started before adoption of Zoning Ordinance? No. 
 
VII) Is the Variance Substantial? No. Due to the preexisting nature of the prior deck. 

 
ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn stated that the 100 ft setback was designed to protect the 
Hudson River for a variety of important reasons, however, since the house is a preexisting 
nonconforming structure and the deck was also preexisting in a similar form, she feels the 
area variance should be approved due to the preexisting nature of the prior deck. The Board 
agreed and the following decision was made.  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 02-2014 
Granting Area Variance App #2013-04                  

 
Motion by ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn,  
Seconded by ZBA Member Gregory Smith, 
 
and passed unanimously by said Board,  
 
WHEREAS, the 100 ft setback was designed to protect the Hudson River for a variety of 
important reasons, however,  
 
WHEREAS, since the house is a preexisting nonconforming structure and the deck was also 
preexisting in a similar form, the area variance shall be approved due to the preexisting 
nature of the prior deck,  
 
therefore be it, 
 
RESOLVED, that the Zoning Board of Appeals finds that an area variance of 26 ½ ft from 
Section 190-9 Area Requirements and Table 2 B of the Town of Greenwich Zoning 
Ordinance is the minimum variance granted in order to preserve and protect the character of 
the neighborhood and the health, safety and welfare of the community. 



Town of Greenwich 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

January 2, 2014 
 

Page 5 of 6 

RECORD OF VOTE: 
  Chairman John Farndell   AYE 
  Member Gregory Smith   AYE 

   Member Ralph Vecchio   ABSENT 
   Member Dawn Sharts   AYE 
   Member Tammara Van Ryn   AYE 
   Member Roland Mann (Alternate)  ABSENT 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
ZBA Chairman John Farndell stated that there will be a joint meeting of the Planning Board, 
Town Board and Zoning Board of Appeals on January 23, 2014 at 7:00 pm at the Greenwich 
Middle Grade cafeteria. This meeting will be held to discuss the current Zoning Regulations 
and any areas that the Board members feel should be discussed. ZBA Chairman John 
Farndell stated that any topics that each Board member would like to discuss must be e-
mailed to Planning Board Clerk Kellie Blake by January 20, 2014 to be placed on the agenda.  
ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn stated that she had a couple of topics that she would like to 
discuss. Tammara stated that with one application, because of the lot, there was some 
difficulty on differentiating between the rear lot and the side lot of the property and asked if 
some of those definitions should be made more specific. ZBA Chairman John Farndell stated 
that would be a good one to bring up at the meeting to get the other Boards consensus on 
how they interpret it.  
ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn stated that another issue she found was on the area 
requirement charts. In the Industrial District the maximum lot coverage is 60% and in the 
Commercial Zone maximum lot coverage is actually 100% (because the chart states none) 
and Tammara stated that from a storm water management, ecological prospective, 
landscaping, anything like that, she feels the maximum lot coverage shouldn’t be 100%. ZBA 
Chairman John Farndell stated that he thinks that is addressed under the Planning Board 
review. ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn asked why there is one for Industrial but not for 
Commercial. ZBA Chairman John Farndell stated that was another good topic to address at 
the joint meeting.  
ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn stated that the last topic that she would like to address is 
having multiple commercial structures or businesses on one parcel/lot as well as multiple 
residential houses on one parcel/lot. ZBA Chairman John Farndell stated that he doesn’t 
have an issue with multiple commercial businesses on one lot, since that is common, but he 
does feel that multiple residential houses on one parcel/lot should not be allowed. ZBA 
Member Gregory Smith stated that within the agricultural community you can’t regulate 
housing. ZBA Chairman John Farndell stated that those situations are covered under 
agricultural law he is pertaining to people who build multiple houses on one parcel not for 
agricultural reasoning. ZBA Member Gregory Smith asked how they could regulate that with 
someone that has 200 acres of land and has the room to place multiple houses. ZBA 
Member Tammara Van Ryn stated the reasoning for regulating it would be to insure that the 
proper setbacks are maintained and for future use of the property. 
ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn said that she would also like to ask the Planning Board to 



Town of Greenwich 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

January 2, 2014 
 

Page 6 of 6 

explain to the ZBA how they review properties in regards to site plan review and design 
standards as well as how they follow up to make sure things are executed. 
ZBA Chairman John Farndell stated that he would like the wall mounted sign size to be 
reduced back down because he feels they are too large.  
ZBA Chairman John Farndell stated that he also feels that the area around Tracy Drive 
should be rezoned as a residential district instead of rural agricultural due to the fact that 
when the properties were subdivided there was a 15 ft setback. Therefore, any of the lots that 
people would want to build on, the property owner would have to come before the ZBA and 
obtain an area variance in order to do so. 
ZBA Chairman John Farndell asked ZBA Member Tammara Van Ryn to e-mail her topics to 
Kellie Blake to have them placed on the agenda for the joint meeting.      
 
ZBA Member Gregory Smith asked if the Board was still happy with the 50 ft setback 
requirement. The Board responded that they were. Greg continued that his reasoning for 
questioning was due to him wondering if the setback has deterred any property owner from 
anything. ZBA Chairman John Farndell stated that the new subdivisions are adhering to the 
50 ft requirement and most of the applications that have come before the ZBA had been from 
structures that were built prior to the adoption of Zoning. ZBA Member Gregory Smith said 
that he just didn’t want to put people through an unnecessary process. ZBA Chairman John 
Farndell said that he feels 50 ft is a good distance to preserve agricultural property.  
 
 
 
Motion by ZBA Chairman John Farndell, 
Seconded by ZBA Member Dawn Sharts, 
 
and passed unanimously by said Board, 
 
That the meeting be adjourned at 7:45 pm.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
Amanda Willetts, 
ZBA Clerk   


